Minutes 9/2/21 ZBA

Town of Sand Lake
Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)
September 2, 2021

The minutes, as follows, are intended to provide a general summary of the Agenda items and Public
Hearings. Quotes presented are not verbatim, nor is all discussion which occurred presented herein. This
document should not be relied upon as a transcript or the actual proceedings. The transcript of this
meeting is on a digital voice recorder and available at the Town Hall.

CALLTO ORDER: Geraldine Burger opened the meeting at 7:05 PM
MEMBERS PRESENT: Scott Bendett

Amy Lent

Wayne Gendron

Craig Crist, Esq.
Christopher Langlois, Esq — Special Counsel

MEMBERS ABSENT: Melissa Toni

OTHERS PRESENT: Melissa Jankovic Benjamin Neidl, Esqg., Anna Church, Robert Shuey, Julie
Hansen, Nicholas Vandercar, Matthew Griffin, Monica Ryan (Town
Planner)

RECORDING CLERK: Laura Fedoreshenko, Clerk for Planning Board and ZBA

Geraldine Burger (GB) announced she would preside over the meeting as vice-chairperson as Melissa Toni
(MT), Chairperson for the ZBA, was absent from the meeting.

Appeal Application and Public Hearing

Matthew Griffin (Applicant) Project Address:

42 Eastern Union Turnpike 37 Eastern Union Turnpike
Averill Park, NY 12018 Averill Park, NY 12018
R-Residential Zoning District Tax Map #: 159.-1-2.1

An appeal on the classification of a use as determined by the Code Enforcement Officer.

Christopher Langlois, Esq, Special Counsel and ZBA members held an attorney-client Board meeting. At
7:18pm Board members and Mr. Langlois returned to resume the ZBA meeting. Mr. Langlois then
summarized the ZBA meeting held on August 12, 2021 at which the Public Hearing had been opened and
remained open to seek potential input at this meeting from the Code Enforcement Officer Michael Wager
on his interpretation and answer any questions from the Board on his determination on the classification
of use for the Jankovic project. Mr. Langlois then stated that it was his understanding that Mr. Wager was
unavailable due to being out on medical leave and would continue to be unavailable for the foreseeable
future. He stated that the original determination letter from Mr. Wager would be what the Board would
have to work with for this appeal. Mr. Langlois explained that the closing of the Public Hearing would be
needed and added that at the last meeting, the Board heard from the appellate, the Jankovics and other
members of the public. He then stated that if others were presently in attendance and wished to provide
a public comment now would be time to do so. Mr. Langley announced that a letter had been submitted
by attorney William Hurst who had written on behalf of Mr. Griffin in further support of the appeal. He
added that the letter had been shared via email to Board members on September 1, 2021. Mr. Langlois

1



Minutes 9/2/21 ZBA

asked Mr. Neidl if he had received a copy of that letter to which Mr. Neidl replied he had not. Mr. Langlois
stated that a copy would be provided to him. A discussion ensued regarding providing copies of
documents versus documents having to be FOILED and the Town’s policy on providing copies was
explained. Monica Ryan stated that written comment had been received by Anna Church as well as an
additional written comment from Matthew Griffin (see attached).

SB motioned to close the Public Hearing at 7:12pm; seconded by WG and all approved. WG commented
that he read through the Zoning Codes many times and noted that in the Town of Sand Lake there were
other organizations that had been granted Special Use Permits (SUP) within the district that allowed up
to 50 people, 5 days a week for 10 hours a day. WG added that the sole purpose for the ZBA meeting was
to see if the determination made by CEO Michael Wager was proper. He noted that the Zoning Code for
the classification stated: any recreation use conducted for other than personal use. He further noted that
is says these recreational uses “may include” and does not say that they are “limited to”. He noted that
many uses were listed and while basketball was not one of them; he did not think it meant to exclude
basketball either. WG further stated that he did not feel the Zoning Code definitions for Club Recreation
nor Indoor Recreation fit the Jankovic project. He added that he felt the only determination that could
have been made by CEO Mr. Wager was for Open Space Recreation based on its definition in the Zoning
Code. SB stated that the impacts of the neighborhood had been well documented and trusted the Town'’s
Planning Board to provide the mitigation to ensure that the basketball courts were good neighbors. He
added that he agreed with WG and supported CEO Mr. Wager. Amy Lent (AL) stated that they heard from
the neighbors and empathized with them on the noise. She added that noise was not something she felt
that the Zoning Code guaranteed the elimination of in the neighborhood. She further added that if the
basketball courts were to move forward, it was her hope that methods were found to make it as tolerable
as possible for the neighborhood.

With permission from GB, Ms. Griffin asked if the Board members had read the letter from Mr. Hurst to
which the Board replied they had. Ms. Griffin then asked how the Board could vote when a member was
absent. GB replied that the Board consisted of 5 members total and a quorum of 3 members was needed
to vote; thus, there were sufficient Board members present to make a motion of determination. Mr.
Langlois stated that the Board had received extensive public comments and the current discussion was
not a Q & A session between the public and Board members. He stated the Board had expressed their
thoughts and reasons and as such it would be appropriate to call for a motion. With permission from GB,
Mr. Griffin spoke regarding the earlier comment on clubs, such as Planet Fitness and racquetball clubs
which were commercial endeavors and the reason why it was not Recreation Club.

SB motioned to deny the appeal and sustain the CEO determination of Open Space Recreation as applied
to this particular issue; this was seconded by WG and all approved. Mr. Langlois explained that
procedurally, a written decision to memorialize the Board’s decision would be prepared and offered for
adoption at the next ZBA meeting. Ms. Ryan brought up the timing of when the Special Use Permit
application would be resumed with the Planning Board (PB) and Mr. Langlois suggested that the written
decision be first be prepared for adoption by the ZBA Board members and filed with the Town Clerk’s
Office before the project resumed review by the PB. It was then explained to the applicant that the ZBA
proceedings would not be officially done until such time as the ZBA adopts the written decision and then
the Jankovic project would be back before the PB at their 2" meeting in October.

APPROVAL OF DRAFT MINUTES —
GB motioned to accept the May 13, 2021 minutes as submitted; seconded by SB and all approved.

ADJOURNMENT
SB motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:38pm; seconded by WG and all approved.



